

FILED



CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

by

DE

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION

FILED
JUN 10 59 AM '02
U.S. DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIF.

11 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 12 13 Plaintiff, 14 v. 15 TREK ALLIANCE, INC., et al., 16 Defendants.	) Case No. 02-9270 (AJWx)) [Proposed]) TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER) WITH ASSET FREEZE, APPOINTMENT OF) TEMPORARY RECEIVER, AND OTHER) EQUITABLE RELIEF, AND ORDER TO) SHOW CAUSE WHY A PRELIMINARY) INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT ISSUE AND A) PERMANENT RECEIVER SHOULD NOT BE) APPOINTED
---	--

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission having filed its Complaint for a permanent injunction and other equitable relief in this matter pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and having applied ex parte for a Temporary Restraining Order pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and the Court having considered the Complaint, Plaintiff's application, and the memorandum of points and authorities and other materials filed in support thereof, and now being advised in the premises, finds as follows:

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this case and there is good cause to believe it will have jurisdiction of all parties hereto, and that venue in this district is proper.

1 2. There is good cause to believe that Defendants Trek
2 Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation,
3 Jeffrey Kale Flagg, a/k/a Kale Flagg, Richard Von Alvensleben,
4 a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Tiffani Von, and
5 Harry M. Flagg have engaged in and are likely to engage in acts
6 that violate Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and
7 that the Commission is likely to prevail on the merits of this
8 action.

9 3. There is good cause to believe that immediate and
10 irreparable harm will result from Defendants' ongoing violations
11 of the FTC Act unless Defendants are restrained and enjoined by
12 Order of this Court.

13 4. There is good cause to believe that immediate and
14 irreparable damage to the Court's ability to grant effective final
15 relief for consumers in the form of monetary restitution will
16 occur from the sale, transfer, or other disposition or concealment
17 by defendants of assets or records unless defendants are
18 immediately restrained and enjoined by order of this Court, and
19 that in accordance with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b), the interests of
20 justice therefore require that this order be granted without prior
21 notice to defendants. There is thus good cause for relieving the
22 Commission of the duty to provide defendants with prior notice of
23 the Commission's application.

24 5. Good cause exists for the appointment of a Temporary
25 Receiver for corporate defendants Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek
26 Education Corporation, and VonFlagg Corporation.

27 6. Considering Plaintiff's likelihood of ultimate success
28 and weighing the equities, a Temporary Restraining Order ("Order")

1 with asset freeze, appointment of a Temporary Receiver and other
2 equitable relief is in the public interest.

3 7. No security is required of any agency of the United
4 States for issuance of a restraining order. Fed. R. Civ. P.
5 65(c).

6 ORDER

7 DEFINITIONS

8 For purposes of this Order, the following definitions shall
9 apply:

10 1. "Plaintiff" means the Federal Trade Commission.

11 2. "Defendants" means Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek Education
12 Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation, Jeffrey Kale Flagg, a/k/a Kale
13 Flagg, Richard Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von
14 Alvensleben, a/k/a Tiffani Von, and Harry M. Flagg, and each of
15 them, by whatever names each might be known by, as well as their
16 successors, assigns, officers, agents, directors, servants,
17 employees, salespersons, independent contractors, attorneys,
18 corporations, subsidiaries, all other persons or entities directly
19 or indirectly under their control or under common control with any
20 of them, and all other persons or entities in active concert or
21 participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this
22 Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting directly or
23 through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device,
24 including, but not limited to, fictitious business names;

25 3. "Corporate Defendants" refers to Trek Alliance, Inc.,
26 Trek Education Corporation, and VonFlagg Corporation.

1 4. "Individual Defendants" refers to Richard Von
2 Alvensleben, a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von Alvensleben, a/k/a
3 Tiffani Von, and Harry M. Flagg.

4 5. "Receivership Defendants" means corporate defendants Trek
5 Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, and VonFlagg
6 Corporation, their affiliates and subsidiaries, and any other
7 corporations or businesses under the control of any of the
8 corporate defendants.

9 6. "Marketing Program" includes, but is not limited to, any
10 multi-level marketing program, business investment opportunity,
11 pyramid marketing scheme, Ponzi scheme, or chain marketing scheme
12 that is marketed by any of the Defendants.

13 7. "Marketing Program Participant" means anyone who, under
14 a condition that he or she make a payment, is granted the right to
15 receive rewards in return for recruiting other people who are also
16 granted a license or right to receive rewards in return for
17 recruiting others, upon condition of making a payment, and may
18 further perpetuate the chain of person who are granted a right
19 upon such conditions.

20 8. "Material" means likely to affect a person's choice of,
21 or conduct regarding, goods or services.

22 9. "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right
23 to, or claim to, any real or personal property, including, without
24 limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment, fixtures,
25 general intangibles, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries,
26 inventory, checks, notes, accounts, credits, contracts,
27 receivables, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever located.

10. "Document" is equal in scope and synonymous in meaning to the usage of the term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, audio and video recordings, computer records, and any other data compilations from which information can be obtained. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of the term.

11. "Person" means a natural person, organization, or other legal entity, including a corporation, partnership, proprietorship, association, cooperative, government or governmental subdivision or agency, or any other group or combination acting as an entity.

12. The terms "and" and "or" shall be construed conjunctively or disjunctively as necessary, and to make the applicable phrase or sentence inclusive rather than exclusive.

I.

PROHIBITED REPRESENTATIONS

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendants and their successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons or entities in active concert or participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection with the offering for sale or sale of the right to participate in any Marketing Program, are hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from the following:

1 A. Representing, or assisting others in representing,
2 expressly or by implication, that persons who participate in such
3 programs will or are likely to receive substantial income from the
4 purchase of products or services by their "downline" --i.e, the
5 participant's recruits and the recruit's successive generation of
6 recruits--or the recruitment of additional participants;

7 B. Representing, or assisting others in representing,
8 expressly or by implication, that persons who participate in such
9 a program will or are likely to receive compensation related to
10 recruitment;

11 C. Representing, or assisting others in representing,
12 expressly or by implication, that persons who participate in such
13 a program will or are likely to receive compensation related to
14 the purchase or sale of goods or services, unless the payment of
15 such compensation is not prohibited by Section III of this Order;

16 D. Falsely representing, or assisting others in falsely
17 representing, expressly or by implication, that persons who
18 participate in such a program are likely to realize substantial
19 financial gain;

20 E. Falsely representing, or assisting others in falsely
21 representing, expressly or by implication, that salaried or
22 permanent employment opportunities are available; and

23 F. Falsely representing, or assisting others in falsely
24 representing, expressly or by implication, any other material
25 fact.

- 1
- 2
- 3
- 4
- 5
- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24
- 25
- 26
- 27
- 28

- 2
- 3
- 4
- 5
- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24
- 25
- 26
- 27
- 28

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859

28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

26
27
28

1 **III.**

2 **PROHIBITION AGAINST MAKING PAYMENTS RELATED TO RECRUITMENT**

3 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that Defendants and their successors,
4 assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and
5 those persons or entities in active concert or participation with
6 any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
7 service or otherwise, whether acting directly or through any
8 corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, are
9 temporarily restrained and enjoined from operating any Marketing
10 Program that:

11 A. Pays any compensation related to recruitment;

12 B. Pays any compensation related to the purchase or sale of
13 goods or services unless the majority of such compensation is
14 derived from sales to persons who are not members of such
15 Marketing Program; or

16 C. Otherwise constitutes a pyramid marketing scheme, Ponzi
17 scheme, or chain marketing scheme.

18 **IV.**

19 **ASSET FREEZE**

20 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that Defendants are hereby temporarily
21 restrained and enjoined, until further order of this Court, from:

22 A. Transferring, encumbering, selling, concealing,
23 pledging, hypothecating, assigning, spending, withdrawing,
24 disbursing, conveying, gifting, dissipating, or otherwise
25 disposing of any funds, property, coins, lists of consumer names,
26 shares of stock, or other assets, wherever located, that are (1)
27 owned or controlled by any of the named Defendants, in whole or in
28 part; (2) in the actual or constructive possession of any of the

1 named Defendants; (3) held by an agent of any of the named
2 Defendants, as a retainer for the agent's provision of services to
3 a named Defendant; or (4) owned, controlled by, or in the actual
4 or constructive possession of, or otherwise held for the benefit
5 of, any corporation, partnership, or other entity directly or
6 indirectly owned or controlled by any of the named Defendants.

7 B. Opening or causing to be opened any safe deposit boxes
8 titled in the name of any of the named Defendants, or subject to
9 access by any of the named Defendants;

10 C. Incurring charges or cash advances on any credit or
11 debit card issued in the name, singly or jointly, any of the named
12 Defendants, or any corporation, partnership, or other entity
13 directly or indirectly owned or controlled by any of the named
14 Defendants; and

15 D. Failing to disclose to Plaintiff, immediately upon
16 service of this Order, information that fully identifies each
17 asset of the named Defendants, and each entity holding such asset,
18 including, without limitation, the entity's name, address, and
19 telephone number, the number of the account, and the name under
20 which the account is held.

21 E. Provided, that the freeze imposed in this Section shall
22 be construed to apply to assets that the Individual Defendants
23 acquire following service of this Order only if such assets are
24 derived from activity prohibited by this Order.

25 **V.**

26 **FINANCIAL REPORTS**

27 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that within forty-eight hours after
28 service of this Order:

A. Each of the Individual Defendants shall complete and deliver to plaintiffs the Financial Statement captioned "Financial Statement of Individual Defendant," a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment 1;

B. Defendants Jeffrey Kale Flagg, Richard Von Alvensleben, and Harry Flagg are jointly and severally ordered to prepare and deliver to Plaintiff and the temporary Receiver, for each of the Corporate Defendants, the Financial Statement captioned "Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant," a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment 2;

C. Each Individual Defendant shall, on behalf of each corporation of which he or she is the majority owner or otherwise controls, other than the Corporate Defendants, complete and deliver to plaintiffs a separate copy of the "Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant";

D. Named Defendants shall provide the Commission access to records and documents pertaining to assets of any of the named Defendants that are held by financial institutions outside the territory of the United States by signing a Consent to Release of Financial Records if requested by plaintiffs.

VI.

PRESERVATION OF RECORDS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, and their agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and all persons or entities directly or indirectly under the control of any of them, and all other persons or entities in active concert or participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, and each such person, are hereby temporarily

1 restrained and enjoined from destroying, erasing, mutilating,
2 concealing, altering, transferring or otherwise disposing of, in
3 any manner, directly or indirectly, any documents that relate to
4 the business practices or business or personal finances of any of
5 the Individual Defendants or the business practices or business
6 finances of any of the Corporate Defendants, including, but not
7 limited to, such documents as any contracts, accounting data,
8 correspondence, advertisements, computer tapes, discs or other
9 computerized records, books, written or printed records,
10 handwritten notes, telephone logs, telephone scripts, receipt
11 books, ledgers, personal and business canceled checks and check
12 registers, bank statements, appointment books, copies of federal,
13 state, or local business or personal income or property tax
14 returns.

15 **VII.**

16 **RECORD KEEPING**

17 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that each of the Individual Defendants
18 is hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from failing to make
19 and keep, and to provide to Plaintiffs' counsel promptly upon
20 request, an accurate accounting that, in reasonable detail,
21 accurately, fairly, and completely reflects his incomes,
22 disbursements, transactions, and use of money, beginning
23 immediately upon service or actual notice of this Order.

24 **VIII.**

25 **NOTIFICATION OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES**

26 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that each of the Individual Defendants
27 is hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from creating,
28 operating, or exercising any control over any business entity,

1 including any partnership, limited partnership, joint venture,
2 sole proprietorship or corporation, without first serving on
3 counsel for the Commission a written statement disclosing the
4 following: (1) the name of the business entity; (2) the address
5 and telephone number of the business entity; (3) the names of the
6 business entity's officers, directors, principals, managers and
7 employees; and (4) a detailed description of the business entity's
8 intended activities.

9 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that each of the Individual Defendants
10 shall notify the Commission at least seven (7) days prior to any
11 affiliation with any new or previously inactive business or
12 employment. Each notice shall include the defendant's new
13 business address and a statement of the nature of the new business
14 or employment and of his or her duties and responsibilities in
15 connection with that business or employment.

16 **IX.**

17 **FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS**

18 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that any financial or brokerage
19 institution, business entity, or person having possession,
20 custody, or control of any records of any of the named Defendants
21 or Receivership Defendants, or of any account, safe deposit box,
22 or other asset titled in the name of any of the named Defendants,
23 either individually or jointly or held for the benefit of any of
24 the named Defendants, or that has maintained any such account,
25 safe deposit box, or other asset at any time since January 1,
26 1999, shall:

27 A. Hold and retain within its control and prohibit the
28 transfer, encumbrance, pledge, assignment, removal, withdrawal,

1 dissipation, sale, or other disposal of any such account or other
2 asset, except for transfers or withdrawals authorized in writing
3 by counsel for Plaintiff, by the Temporary Receiver (with respect
4 to assets of any of the Receivership Defendants, or by further
5 order of this Court;

6 B. Deny access to any safe deposit box titled individually
7 or jointly in the name of any of the named Defendants or otherwise
8 subject to access by either defendant;

9 C. Provide to Plaintiff and to the Temporary Receiver,
10 within three (3) business days of notice of this Order, a sworn
11 statement setting forth:

12 1. The identification of each account or asset;

13 2. The balance of each account or a description of the
14 nature and value of each asset as of the close of business on the
15 day notification of this Order is received, and, if the account or
16 asset has been closed or moved, the balance or value removed and
17 the person or entity to whom it was transferred; and

18 3. the identification of any safe deposit box titled
19 in the name of or subject to access by any of the named
20 Defendants.

21 D. Upon request by counsel for Plaintiff or the Temporary
22 Receiver (with respect to assets held for any of the Receivership
23 Defendants), promptly provide Plaintiff or the Temporary Receiver
24 with copies of all records or other documentation pertaining to
25 such account or asset, including but not limited to originals or
26 copies of account applications, account statements, signature
27 cards, checks, drafts, deposit tickets, transfers to and from the
28 accounts, all other debit and credit instruments or slips,

1 currency transaction reports, 1099 forms, and safe deposit box
2 logs; and

3 E. At the direction of Plaintiff or the Temporary Receiver
4 appointed herein, and without further order of this Court, convert
5 any stocks, bonds, options, mutual funds, or other securities to
6 their cash equivalents.

7 X.

8 **REPATRIATION OF ASSETS**

9 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that within five business days
10 following service of this Order, each of the named Defendants
11 shall,

12 A. Repatriate to the United States all funds, documents, or
13 assets in foreign countries held either: (1) by them; (2) for
14 their benefit; or (3) under their direct or indirect control,
15 jointly or singly;

16 B. The same business day as any repatriation under
17 paragraph A above,

18 1. notify plaintiffs and the Temporary Receiver of the
19 name and location of the financial institution or other entity
20 that is the recipient of such funds, documents, or assets; and

21 2. serve this Order on any such financial institution
22 or other entity;

23 C. Provide Plaintiff and the Temporary Receiver with a full
24 accounting of all funds, documents, and assets outside of the
25 territory of the United States held either: (1) by them; (2) for
26 their benefit; or (3) under their direct or indirect control,
27 jointly or singly; and
28

1 D. Hold and retain all repatriated funds, documents, and
2 assets and prevent any transfer, disposition, or dissipation
3 whatsoever of any such assets or funds.

4 **XI.**

5 **IMMEDIATE ACCESS TO DEFENDANTS' RECORDS**

6 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that Defendants and their successors,
7 assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and
8 those persons in active concert or participation with any of them
9 who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
10 otherwise, whether acting directly or through any corporation,
11 subsidiary, division, or other device, and the Temporary Receiver,
12 shall allow Plaintiff's representatives immediate access to the
13 business premises, mail drops, storage facilities, and all other
14 business locations owned, controlled, or used by defendants,
15 including, but not limited to, 917 Tahoe Blvd., Suites #103 and
16 #208, Incline Village, Nevada, and 875 E. Patriot Blvd., Suite
17 205, Reno, Nevada. The purpose of the access shall be to effect
18 service and to inspect and copy materials relevant to this action.
19 Plaintiff shall have the right to remove documents from
20 Defendants' premises in order that they may be inspected,
21 inventoried, and copied. Plaintiff shall return any such removed
22 documents within three (3) business days, or such time-period that
23 is agreed upon by Plaintiff and Defendants. Defendants, to the
24 extent they are in possession of documents relevant to this
25 action, shall provide Plaintiff with any necessary means of access
26 to these documents, including without limitation keys and
27 combinations to locks, computer access codes, and storage area
28 access information;

1 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that the Temporary Receiver shall
2 subsequently allow the Commission's representatives, the
3 representatives of the named Defendants, and the named Defendants
4 themselves, reasonable access to the business premises of the
5 Receivership Defendants. The purpose of this access shall be to
6 inspect and copy any and all books, records, accounts, and other
7 property owned by or in the possession of the Receivership
8 Defendant. The Temporary Receiver shall have the discretion to
9 determine the time and manner of this access.

10 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that if, at the time of service of this
11 Order, any records or property relating to Defendants' business or
12 assets are located in the personal residence of any of the named
13 Defendants, then such Defendant shall, within forty-eight (48)
14 hours of service of this Order, produce to Plaintiff, at a
15 location designated by Plaintiff:

16 A. All contracts, accounting data, written or electronic
17 correspondence, advertisements, computer tapes, discs, or other
18 computerized or electronic records, books, written or printed
19 records, handwritten notes, telephone logs, telephone scripts,
20 telephone bills, receipt books, ledgers, membership records and
21 lists, refund records, receipts, ledgers, bank records (including
22 personal and business monthly statements, canceled checks, records
23 of wire transfers, and check registers), appointment books, copies
24 of federal, state, and local business or personal income or
25 property tax returns, 1099 forms, title records, and other
26 documents or records of any kind that relate to defendants'
27 business and assets; and
28

1 B. All computers and data in whatever form, used by
2 defendants, in whole or in part, relating to defendants' business
3 and assets.

4 XII.

5 APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY RECEIVER

6 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Robb Evans^{SL} is
7 appointed Temporary Receiver for Corporate Defendants Trek
8 Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, and VonFlagg
9 Corporation, and their affiliates and subsidiaries (hereinafter
10 referred to as the "Receivership Defendants"), with the full power
11 of an equity receiver. The Temporary Receiver shall be the agent
12 of this Court and solely the agent of this Court in acting as
13 Receiver under this Order. The Temporary Receiver shall be
14 accountable directly to this Court. The Temporary Receiver shall
15 comply with all Local Rules of this Court governing receivers.

16 XIII.

17 RECEIVERSHIP DUTIES

18 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Receiver is directed
19 and authorized to perform and accomplish the following:

20 A. Assume full control of the Receivership Defendants by
21 removing, as the Receiver deems necessary or advisable, any
22 manager, independent contractor, employee, or agent of the
23 Receivership Defendants, including any and all of the Individual
24 Defendants, from control of, management of, or participation in,
25 the affairs of the Receivership Defendants;

26 B. Take exclusive custody, control and possession of all
27 assets and documents of, or in the possession, custody, or under
28 the control of, the Receivership Defendants, wherever situated.

SC

XII.

APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY RECEIVER

(cont'd from previous page)

SC Provided, however, that the Temporary Receiver shall, within 24 hours of taking control of all of the Receivership Defendants and their business premises, file and serve a declaration or report in which the Temporary Receiver or his duly appointed agent states whether he is persuaded, by clear and convincing evidence, (a) that the business of the Receivership Defendants is permeated by fraud, SC and (b) ^{that} ~~whether~~ a substantial portion of the Receivership Defendants' assets are readily susceptible to dissipation or secretion, ^{including} ~~or~~ whether the Receivership Defendants have attempted to conceal or protect assets, by, e.g., movement to offshore accounts.

Provided further, that the appointment of the Temporary Receiver, and/or the Temporary Receiver's duties and responsibilities, shall be subject to rescission or modification based upon the Court's evaluation of the Temporary Receiver's report. SC

1 The Temporary Receiver shall have full power to divert mail and to
2 sue for, collect, receive, take in possession, hold, and manage
3 all assets and documents of the Receivership Defendants and other
4 persons or entities whose interests are now held by or under the
5 direction, possession, custody, or control of the Receivership
6 Defendants. Provided, however, the Temporary Receiver shall not
7 attempt to collect any amount from any sales representative of the
8 Receivership Defendants.

9 C. Take all steps necessary to secure all premises owned,
10 rented, leased, or otherwise controlled by the Receivership
11 Defendants, including but not limited to all such premises located
12 at 917 Tahoe Blvd., Suites #103 and #208, Incline Village, Nevada,
13 and 875 E. Patriot Blvd., Suite 205, Reno, Nevada. Such steps may
14 include, but are not limited to, the following as the Temporary
15 Receiver deems necessary or advisable: (1) serving and filing this
16 Order; (2) completing a written inventory of all receivership
17 assets; (3) obtaining pertinent information from all employees and
18 other agents of the Receivership Defendants, including, but not
19 limited to, the name, home address, social security number, job
20 description, method of compensation, and all accrued and unpaid
21 commissions and compensation of each such employee or agent;
22 (4) video taping all portions of the location; (5) securing the
23 location by changing the locks and disconnecting any computer
24 modems or other means of access to the computer or other records
25 maintained at that location; or (6) requiring any persons present
26 on the premises at the time this Order is served to leave the
27 premises, to provide the Temporary Receiver with proof of
28 identification, or to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the

1 Temporary Receiver that such persons are not removing from the
2 premises documents or assets of the Receivership Defendants;

3 D. Conserve, hold, and manage all receivership assets, and
4 perform all acts necessary or advisable to preserve the value of
5 those assets, in order to prevent any irreparable loss, damage, or
6 injury to consumers or to creditors of the Receivership
7 Defendants, including, but not limited to, obtaining an accounting
8 of the assets and preventing transfer, withdrawal, or
9 misapplication of assets;

10 E. Enter into contracts and purchase insurance as advisable
11 or necessary;

12 F. Prevent the inequitable distribution of assets and to
13 determine, adjust, and protect the interests of consumers and
14 creditors who have transacted business with the Receivership
15 Defendants;

16 G. Manage and administer the business of the Receivership
17 Defendants until further order of this Court by performing all
18 incidental acts that the Temporary Receiver deems to be advisable
19 or necessary, which includes retaining, hiring, or dismissing any
20 employees, independent contractors, or agents;

21 H. Choose, engage, and employ attorneys, accountants,
22 appraisers, and other independent contractors and technical
23 specialists, as the Temporary Receiver deems advisable or
24 necessary in the performance of duties and responsibilities under
25 the authority granted by this Order;

26 I. Make payments and disbursements from the receivership
27 estate that are necessary or advisable for carrying out the
28 directions of, or exercising the authority granted by, this Order.

1 The Temporary Receiver shall apply to the Court for prior approval
2 of any payment of any debt or obligation incurred by the
3 Receivership Defendants prior to the date of entry of this Order,
4 except payments that the Temporary Receiver deems necessary or
5 advisable to secure assets of the Receivership Defendants, such as
6 rental payments;

7 J. Determine and implement the manner in which the
8 Receivership Defendants will comply with, and prevent violations
9 of, this Order and all other applicable laws;

10 K. Institute, compromise, adjust, appear in, intervene in,
11 or become party to such actions or proceedings in state, federal
12 or foreign courts that the Temporary Receiver deems necessary and
13 advisable to preserve or recover the assets of the Receivership
14 Defendants or that the Temporary Receiver deems necessary and
15 advisable to carry out the Temporary Receiver's mandate under this
16 Order;

17 L. Defend, compromise, adjust, or otherwise dispose of any
18 or all actions or proceedings instituted in the past or in the
19 future against the Temporary Receiver in his role as Temporary
20 Receiver, or against the Receivership Defendants that the
21 Temporary Receiver deems necessary and advisable to preserve the
22 assets of the Receivership Defendants or that the Temporary
23 Receiver deems necessary and advisable to carry out the Temporary
24 Receiver's mandate under this Order;

25 M. Issue subpoenas to obtain documents and records
26 pertaining to the receivership, and conduct discovery in this
27 action on behalf of the receivership estate;

N. Open one or more bank accounts as designated depositories for funds of the Receivership Defendants. The Temporary Receiver shall deposit all funds of the Receivership Defendants in such a designated account and shall make all payments and disbursements from the receivership estate from such an account; and

0. Maintain accurate records of all receipts and expenditures that s/he makes as Temporary Receiver.

XIV.

COOPERATION WITH THE TEMPORARY RECEIVER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, and their agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and all persons or entities directly or indirectly under the control of either of them, and all other persons or entities in active concert or participation with either of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, and each such person, shall fully cooperate with and assist the Temporary Receiver. Such cooperation and assistance shall include, but not be limited to, providing any information to the Temporary Receiver that the Temporary Receiver deems necessary to exercising the authority and discharging the responsibilities of the Temporary Receiver under this Order; providing any password required to access any computer or electronic files in any medium; or advising all persons who owe money to the Receivership Defendants (other than sales representatives) that all debts should be paid directly to the Temporary Receiver. Defendants are hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly:

1 A. Transacting any of the business of the Receivership
2 Defendants, or transacting business under the name Trek, Trek
3 Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, TEC, VonFlagg
4 Corporation, or any substantially similar name;

5 B. Destroying, secreting, defacing, transferring, or
6 otherwise altering or disposing of any documents of the
7 Receivership Defendants, including, but not limited to, books,
8 records, accounts, or any other papers of any kind or nature;

9 C. Transferring, receiving, altering, selling, encumbering,
10 pledging, assigning, liquidating, or otherwise disposing of any
11 assets owned, controlled, or in the possession or custody of, or
12 in which an interest is held or claimed by, the Receivership
13 Defendants, or the Temporary Receiver;

14 D. Excusing debts owed to the Receivership Defendants;

15 E. Failing to notify the Temporary Receiver of any asset,
16 including accounts, of a Receivership Defendants held in any name
17 other than the name of the Receivership Defendants, or by any
18 person or entity other than the Receivership Defendants, or
19 failing to provide any assistance or information requested by the
20 Temporary Receiver in connection with obtaining possession,
21 custody, or control of such assets; or

22 F. Doing any act or refraining from any act whatsoever to
23 interfere with the Temporary Receiver's taking custody, control,
24 possession, or managing of the assets or documents subject to this
25 receivership; or to harass or interfere with the Temporary
26 Receiver in any way; or to interfere in any manner with the
27 exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the assets or documents
28 of the Receivership Defendants; or to refuse to cooperate with the

1 Temporary Receiver or the Temporary Receiver's duly authorized
2 agents in the exercise of their duties or authority under any
3 Order of this Court.

4 **XV.**

5 **DELIVERY OF RECEIVERSHIP PROPERTY**

6 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that:

7 A. Immediately upon service of this Order upon them, or
8 within a period permitted by the Temporary Receiver, the
9 Individual Defendants and all other persons in possession,
10 custody, and control of assets or documents of the Receivership
11 Defendants shall transfer or deliver possession, custody, and
12 control of the following to the Temporary Receiver:

13 1. All assets of the Receivership Defendants;

14 2. All documents of the Receivership Defendants,
15 including, but not limited to, books and records of accounts, all
16 financial and accounting records, balance sheets, income
17 statements, bank records (including monthly statements, canceled
18 checks, records of wire transfers, and check registers), client
19 lists, title documents and other papers;

20 3. All assets belonging to members of the public now
21 held by the Receivership Defendants; and

22 4. All keys and codes necessary to gain or to secure
23 access to any assets or documents of the Receivership Defendants,
24 including, but not limited to, access to their business premises,
25 means of communication, accounts, computer systems, or other
26 property.

27 B. In the event any person or entity fails to deliver or
28 transfer any asset or otherwise fails to comply with any provision

1 of this Paragraph, the Temporary Receiver may file, on an ex parte
2 basis, an Affidavit of Non-Compliance regarding the failure. Upon
3 filing of the affidavit, the Court may authorize, without
4 additional process or demand, Writs of Possession or Sequestration
5 or other equitable writs requested by the Temporary Receiver. The
6 writs shall authorize and direct the United States Marshal or any
7 sheriff or deputy sheriff of any county (pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
8 P. 4(c)(1)) to seize the asset, document, or other thing and to
9 deliver it to the Temporary Receiver.

10 **XVI.**

11 **BANKRUPTCY PETITIONS**

12 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that, in light of the asset freeze and
13 appointment of the Temporary Receiver, each of the Individual
14 Defendants is hereby prohibited from filing, or causing to be
15 filed, on behalf of either him- or herself or of any of the
16 Corporate or Receivership Defendants, a petition for relief under
17 the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 101 et seq.,
18 without prior permission from this Court.

19 **XVII.**

20 **TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO THE TEMPORARY RECEIVER**

21 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that, upon service of a copy of this
22 Order, all banks, broker-dealers, savings and loans, escrow
23 agents, title companies, commodity trading companies, or other
24 financial institutions shall cooperate with all reasonable
25 requests of the Temporary Receiver relating to implementation of
26 this Order, including transferring funds at his direction and
27 producing records related to the assets of the Receivership
28 Defendants.

1 XVIII.

2 STAY OF ACTIONS

3 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

4 A. Except by leave of this Court, during pendency of the
5 receivership ordered herein, Defendants and all other persons and
6 entities (except for Plaintiff) be and hereby are stayed from
7 taking any action to establish or enforce any claim, right, or
8 interest for, against, on behalf of, in, or in the name of, any of
9 the Corporate Defendants, or any of its assets, or the Temporary
10 Receiver or the Temporary Receiver's duly authorized agents acting
11 in their capacities as such, including, but not limited to, the
12 following actions:

13 1. Commencing, prosecuting, continuing, entering, or
14 enforcing any suit or proceeding, except that such actions
15 may be filed to toll any applicable statute of limitations;

16 2. Accelerating the due date of any obligation or
17 claimed obligation; filing or enforcing any lien; taking or
18 attempting to take possession, custody, or control of any
19 asset; attempting to foreclose, forfeit, alter, or terminate
20 any interest in any asset, whether such acts are part of a
21 judicial proceeding, are acts of self-help, or otherwise;

22 3. Executing, issuing, serving, or causing the
23 execution, issuance or service of, any legal process,
24 including, but not limited to, attachments, garnishments,
25 subpoenas, writs of replevin, writs of execution, or any
26 other form of process whether specified in this Order or not;
27 or
28

1 4. Doing any act or thing whatsoever to interfere with
2 the Temporary Receiver taking custody, control, possession,
3 or management of the assets or documents subject to this
4 receivership, or to harass or interfere with the Temporary
5 Receiver in any way, or to interfere in any manner with the
6 exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the assets or
7 documents of the Receivership Defendants.

8 B. This paragraph does not stay:

9 1. The commencement or continuation of a criminal
10 action or proceeding;

11 2. The commencement or continuation of an action or
12 proceeding by a governmental unit to enforce such
13 governmental unit's police or regulatory power;

14 3. The enforcement of a judgment, other than a money
15 judgment, obtained in an action or proceeding by a
16 governmental unit to enforce such governmental unit's police
17 or regulatory power;

18 4. The commencement of any action by the Secretary of
19 the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
20 to foreclose a mortgage or deed of trust in any case in which
21 the mortgage or deed of trust held by the Secretary is
22 insured or was formerly insured under the National Housing
23 Act and covers property, or combinations of property,
24 consisting of five or more living units; or

25 5. The issuance to a Receivership Defendants of a
26 notice of tax deficiency.

27 C. Except as otherwise provided in this Order, all persons
28 and entities in need of documentation from the Temporary Receiver

1 shall in all instances first attempt to secure such information by
2 submitting a formal written request to the Temporary Receiver,
3 and, if such request has not been responded to within thirty (30)
4 days of receipt by the Temporary Receiver, any such person or
5 entity may thereafter seek an Order of this Court with regard to
6 the relief requested.

7 **XIX.**

8 **COMPENSATION OF TEMPORARY RECEIVER**

9 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that the Temporary Receiver and all
10 personnel hired by the Temporary Receiver as herein authorized,
11 including counsel to the Temporary Receiver and accountants, are
12 entitled to reasonable compensation for the performance of duties
13 pursuant to this Order and for the cost of actual out-of-pocket
14 expenses incurred by them, from the assets now held by or in the
15 possession or control of or which may be received by the
16 Receivership Defendants. The Temporary Receiver shall file with
17 the Court and serve on the parties periodic requests for the
18 payment of such reasonable compensation, with the first such
19 request filed no more than sixty days after the date of this
20 Order. The Temporary Receiver shall not increase the hourly rates
21 used as the bases for such fee applications without prior approval
22 of the Court.

23 **XX.**

24 **RECEIVER'S BOND**

25 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that the Temporary Receiver shall file
26 with the Clerk of this Court a bond in the sum of 10,000
27 with sureties to be approved by the Court, conditioned that the
28

1 Temporary Receiver will well and truly perform the duties of the
2 office and abide by and perform all acts the Court directs.

3 **XXI.**

4 **DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER**

5 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that named Defendants shall immediately
6 provide a copy of this Order to each of the Corporate Defendants'
7 affiliates, franchises, subsidiaries, divisions, successors,
8 assigns, directors, officers, managing agents, employees,
9 representatives, and independent contractors and shall, within
10 three (3) business days from the date of service of this Order,
11 serve on plaintiff affidavits identifying the names, titles,
12 addresses, and telephone numbers of the persons and entities whom
13 they have served pursuant to this provision. The Temporary
14 Receiver has no obligation under this provision.

15 **XXII.**

16 **CREDIT REPORTS**

17 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that Plaintiff may obtain credit
18 reports concerning any of the named Defendants pursuant to Section
19 604(a)(1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §
20 1681b(a)(1), and that, upon written request, any credit reporting
21 agency from which such reports are requested shall provide them to
22 Plaintiff.

23 **XXIII.**

24 **CORRESPONDENCE**

25 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that, for the purposes of this Order,
26 all correspondence and service of pleadings on Plaintiff shall be
27 addressed to:
28

John D. Jacobs
Jennifer M. Brennan
Federal Trade Commission
10877 Wilshire Blvd., #700
Los Angeles, CA 90024
Fax: (310).824-4380

XXIV.

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION HEARING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation, Jeffrey Kale Flagg, a/k/a Kale Flagg, Richard Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Tiffani Von, and Harry M. Flagg, shall appear before this Court at 312 N Spring St. on the 23rd day of Dec, 2002, at 9:30 o'clock a.m., to show cause, if any there be, why this Court should not enter a preliminary injunction, pending final ruling on the Complaint, against said Defendants enjoining them from violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), imposing such additional relief as may be appropriate, and appointing a permanent receiver over Defendants Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in support of its application for a preliminary injunction, Plaintiff may submit supplemental evidence discovered subsequent to the filing of its application for a TRO, as well as a supplemental memorandum. Plaintiff shall file and serve any supplemental evidence by no later than 4:30 p.m. on the sixth court day prior to the preliminary injunction hearing as scheduled above. Such documents may be served on each named Defendant by faxing or delivering the document(s) to the attorney for the Defendant, or, if the Defendant is not

1 represented by counsel, to a fax number previously designated by
2 the defendant in writing to counsel for Plaintiff; if the
3 defendant has not so designated a fax number, service may be
4 effected by mailing the documents to an address designated in
5 writing by the Defendant to counsel for Plaintiff; if no address
6 has been so designated, service shall be complete upon filing of
7 the documents with this Court.

8 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that named Defendants shall file and
9 serve any opposition to the issuance of a preliminary injunction
10 and the appointment of a permanent receiver over Defendants Trek
11 Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation,
12 including any declarations, exhibits, memoranda or other evidence
13 on which they intend to rely, and objections to any evidence
14 submitted by Plaintiff, by no later than 4:30 p.m. of the fourth
15 court day prior to the hearing on the preliminary injunction.
16 Such documents may be served by fax upon Plaintiff's counsel.

17 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that Plaintiff shall file and serve any
18 reply to Defendants' opposition by no later than the second court
19 day prior to the preliminary injunction hearing.

20 **IT IS FURTHER ORDERED** that there will be no direct
21 examination of witnesses at the preliminary injunction hearing in
22 this matter. Direct testimony shall be presented in the form of
23 declarations or affidavits.

XXV.

EXPIRATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall expire as to each named Defendant ten (10) court days after entry unless, within such time, for good cause shown, it is extended for a like period, or unless the named Defendant consents that it may be extended for a longer period and the reasons therefor are entered of record.

XXVI.

SERVICE OF THIS ORDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that copies of this Order may be served by any means, including facsimile transmission, upon any financial institution or other entity or person that may have possession, custody, or control of any documents or assets of either defendant, or that may be subject to any provision of this Order.

IT IS SO ORDERED, this ^{SC} 9th day of ^{SC} Dec, 200^{SC} 2, at ^{SC} 2:00 o'clock a.m. ^{SC} p.m.

J SPENCER LETTS

Judge of the District Court

Presented by:

JOHN D. JACOBS
JENNIFER M. BRENNAN
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Federal Trade Commission
10877 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. #700
Los Angeles, CA 90024